Public Document Pack



POLICY SCRUTINY GROUP

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via the Council's website: <u>charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees</u>

Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting. The use of any images or sound recordings is not under the Council's control.

To: Councillors Seaton (Chair), K. Harris (Vice-chair), Brookes, Hamilton, Hunt, Murphy, Paling, Parton, Shepherd and Smith (For attention)

All other members of the Council (For information)

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Policy Scrutiny Group to be held in Committee Room 2 - Council Offices on Tuesday, 9th April 2019 at 6.30 pm for the following business.

Chief Executive

Southfields Loughborough

1st April 2019

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

4 - 9

The Group is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 5th February 2019.

- 3. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS
- 4. DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP

5. QUESTIONS UNDER SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 11.16

No questions were submitted.

6. <u>CUSTOMER SERVICE STRATEGY</u>

The Head of Customer Experience will give a presentation at the meeting regarding progress with delivering the Customer Service Strategy.

7. ICT STRATEGY

The Head of Customer Experience will give a presentation at the meeting regarding delivery of the ICT Strategy.

8. WORK PROGRAMME

This is the final meeting of the Group for the 2018/19 Council year. With the exception of one item the Group has completed its work programme for the year. The remaining item, scrutiny of the development of the Local Plan, will be taken up by the relevant committee in the new scrutiny structure that comes into operation in the new Council year.

SCRUTINY QUESTIONS

What topics to choose?

- What difference will scrutiny make?
- Is this an area of concern public/performance/risk register?
- Is this a corporate priority?
- Could scrutiny lead to improvements?
- What are the alternatives to pre-decision scrutiny?

Pre-decision scrutiny

- What is Cabinet being asked to agree?
- Why?
- How does this relate to the overall objective? Which is ...?
- What risks have been identified and how are they being addressed?
- What are the financial implications?
- What other options have been considered?
- Who has been consulted and what were the results?
- Will the decision Cabinet is being asked to take affect other policies, practices etc.?

Basic Questions

- Why are you/we doing this?
- Why are you/we doing it in this way?
- How do you/we know you are making a difference?
- How are priorities and targets set?
- How do you/we compare?
- · What examples of good practice exist elsewhere?

POLICY SCRUTINY GROUP 5TH FEBRUARY 2019

PRESENT: The Chair (Councillor Seaton) The Vice-chair (Councillor K. Harris) Councillors Brookes, Hamilton, Hunt, Murphy, Paling, Parton, Shepherd and Smith

> Councillor Fryer, Morgan (Leader of the Council) and Harper-Davies (Cabinet Lead Member for Performance of Major Contracts)

Chief Executive Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods and Community Wellbeing Head of Cleansing and Open Spaces Head of Strategic Support Corporate Improvement and Policy Officer Democratic Services Manager Democratic Services Officer (MH)

The Chair stated that the meeting would be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via the Council's website. She also advised that, under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound recordings was not under the Council's control.

29. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 13th November 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed.

30. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS

No disclosures of interests were made.

31. DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP

No declarations of the existence of the Party Whip were made.

32. <u>QUESTIONS UNDER SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 11.17</u>

No questions had been submitted.

33. PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL UPDATE

The Chair of the Performance Scrutiny Panel and the Head of Strategic Support attended the meeting to provide an update on the current position regarding the work of the Performance Scrutiny Panel. The Chair of the Performance Scrutiny Panel and the Head of Strategic Support provided the following information:

- (i) New items had been added to the Panel's work programme to enable scrutiny of the five-year housing land supply position and to review the performance of the Charnwood Lottery after it had been running for an appropriate length of time.
- (ii) The Panel operated by identifying issues from the regular performance reports it received and seeking further information or hearing evidence regarding those. Only if concerns still remained would it make a report to the Cabinet.
- (iii) Changes had been made to ensure that the information that the Panel received regarding performance was as up to date as possible. That was beneficial for effective scrutiny.
- (iv) The Panel had begun to review policies and strategies halfway through their life cycle to determine whether the objectives that were set out in them were being achieved. As a result, the need to review the Council's Zero Waste Strategy had been identified.

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

<u>Reason</u>

To acknowledge the information received.

34. BUSINESS PLAN AND CORPORATE BUSINESS PLANNING PROCESS

A report of the Chief Executive, providing the Group with an overview of the corporate business planning process and informing the Group of the progress to date towards the development of the draft Corporate Business Plan for 2019/20, was submitted (item 7 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive and the Corporate Improvement and Policy Officer assisted with consideration of the item and provided the following responses to issues raised:

- (i) The Business Plan for 2019/20 would be the last relating to the current Corporate Plan. As a result, work had been done to check the three previous Business Plans to identify whether all of the activities set out in the Corporate Plan for the four-year period had been addressed. That work had identified that all the headline issues had been addressed and the vast majority, but not all, of the activities. One of the activities that had not been delivered in the way originally envisaged was producing a town centre masterplan for Shepshed.
- (ii) It was important that the actions set out in the Business Plan related to the objectives in the Corporate Plan. The targets that were set for the performance indicators in the Business Plan should be challenging and set out what the Council wished to achieve, but there needed to be a degree of pragmatism too.



- (iii) In respect of the Corporate Plan outcome 'Encourage new jobs to the Borough through promoting the delivery of the Science Park and Enterprise Zone and encouraging new businesses to towns and villages', officers would review the actions set out in the draft Business Plan for 2019/20 to strengthen the link with ongoing work relating to the Science Park and the Enterprise Zones in the Borough.
- (iv) New performance indicators were being proposed for the Business Plan for 2019/20 relating to the times for determining planning applications as this had been raised as a concern by Councillors. There were also other proposed new indicators including one in relation to the Council providing trees to the public. Overall there should be a balance of indicators across Directorates and the Corporate Plan themes. Indicators that were new could be identified to make clear that there would not be previous performance information for them.
- (v) The Business Plan was intended to provide a summary of key headlines in relation to the Council's activities and performance measures. Further detail in relation to particular services and teams was provided in Team Plans.
- (vi) The guidance note that had been circulated with the report had been prepared at the request of the Performance Scrutiny Panel and circulated to members of the Panel.
- (vii) Performance data was auditable and subject to scrutiny by the Performance Scrutiny Panel. Checks on the data could and did take place.
 All Councillors could access the Council's performance management software (known as SPOTlite) if they wanted to check performance.
- (viii) The Business Plan was approved by the Cabinet and used as a corporate management tool and by the Performance Scrutiny Panel. It was complemented by the Annual Report which set out what had been achieved at the end of each year in delivering what was set out in the Corporate Plan and the Business Plan. It was a public document but the Council used a range of methods, including Charnwood News and social media, to provide the public with information about how it was performing. It was recognised that a complete picture of the Council's objectives and performance against them was not contained in a single document.

The following comments were made by members of the Group:

- (i) It would be helpful if the Business Plan made clear that work had been done to deliver the Corporate Plan outcomes in the previous three Business Plans. In addition it would be helpful to clarify that the Corporate Plan outcomes related to the whole period from 2016 and 2020 and the Business Plan related only to 2019/20.
- (ii) The public audience for the Business Plan should be considered and accessible terminology used. For example, what will success look like was easier to understand than measurable success criteria.
- (iii) The guidance document on performance management would be helpful for all Councillors.
- (iv) The Council had satisfactory arrangements in place for business planning and performance management.



RESOLVED

- 1. that the information be noted;
- 2. that it be noted that officers had stated that they would seek to address the comments made by the Group relating to the Science Park and the Enterprise Zones in the Borough, identifying those performance indicators that were new, clarifying the relationship between Corporate Plan outcomes and Business Plan actions and the time periods to which they related, and making the terminology used as publicly accessible as possible when preparing the version of the Business Plan that would be submitted to the Cabinet.

Reasons

- 1. To acknowledge the information received.
- 2. To acknowledge how issues raised by the Group would be dealt with.

35. <u>STRATEGIC AND PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING SERVICES FEES AND CHARGES</u> <u>POLICY</u>

A report relating to the matter had not been included on the agenda for the Cabinet meeting to be held on 14th February 2019 and there was therefore no item for the Group to consider.

36. <u>REVIEW OF ZERO WASTE STRATEGY</u>

The Lead Member for Performance of Major Contracts, the Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods and Community Wellbeing and the Head of Cleansing and Open Spaces provided a briefing on the Government's Resources and Waste Strategy and the effect that it would have on the Council's Zero Waste Strategy (supplementary report to the agenda filed with these minutes) and provided the following responses to issues raised:

- (i) The Borough had not suffered from the scale of flytips associated with organised crime. Most of the flytips in the Borough were of material that could not be taken to the County Council's recycling and household waste sites. Households and businesses had responsibilities to ensure that the contractors they used to dispose of waste were properly accredited. The public could be reminded about the consequences of not doing so.
- (ii) The Council's current arrangements for bulky waste collections were generous compared to other local authorities. However, it was the case that doors were not accepted for bulky waste collections.
- (iii) The Council provided garden waste and trade waste collection as discretionary services and could consider establishing other types of waste collection. However, those could have significant set up costs, for example the provision of skips for collecting construction waste.
- (iv) There would be significant implications should the proposed requirements in the Government's Resources and Waste Strategy to provide weekly food waste collection and free garden waste collection be introduced. For



example, the annual income from the current garden waste service of \pounds 1.4million would be lost and there would be additional costs to extend the service beyond the 50% of households that currently used it. It was estimated that the cost of introducing a food waste collection service would be \pounds 700,000 per year.

- (v) The Government's Waste and Resources Strategy suggested that waste collection authorities, such as the Borough Council, could be provided with additional resources, possibly through the extended producer responsibility set out in the Strategy and/or a review of recycling credits.
- (vi) The best performing councils achieved 60 to 65% of waste being recycled and they provided food waste collection and a free garden waste service. The majority of those councils collected black bins every three weeks.
- (vii) The Council would consider whether to participate in any pilot schemes but there had not been any invitations issued by the Government to date. In considering whether to do so the Council would wish to ensure there would be no reduction in customer satisfaction or any costs to the Council associated with doing so.
- (viii) The Government would be consulting with local authorities and others regarding the proposed requirements to provide weekly food waste collection and free garden waste collection. Should those proposals be taken forward the Council would need to review its Zero Waste Strategy. The Government had identified those changes because the disposal of food waste and garden waste in black bins generated significant amounts of greenhouse gas emissions.
- (ix) Some authorities offered on-demand collection services for certain types of waste such as nappies.
- (x) Road sweepings could be added to garden waste but needed to be processed first.

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

<u>Reason</u>

To acknowledge the information received.

37. PROGRESS WITH PANEL WORK

A report of the Head of Strategic Support, providing an update on the current position with scrutiny panels, was submitted (item 10 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Democratic Services Manager assisted with consideration of the item.

RESOLVED that the current position with scrutiny panels be noted.

<u>Reason</u>

To ensure that the Group was aware of the current position with scrutiny panels.



38. WORK PROGRAMME

A report of the Head of Strategic Support, enabling the Group to consider its work programme and propose to the Scrutiny Management Board any additions, deletions and amendments as appropriate, was submitted (item 11 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Democratic Services Manager assisted with consideration of the item.

RESOLVED

- 1. that the Cabinet's response to the recommendations initially made by the Group regarding the management and adoption of open space and the observations made by the Scrutiny Management Board on that response be noted;
- 2. that information be provided to the Group regarding the outcome of the meeting between the Leader, the Chief Executive and local MPs at which the issue of the management and adoption of open space referred to above was discussed;
- 3. that the actions that had been taken regarding privacy for customers in the Council's main reception area be noted;
- 4. that the changes made by the Chair and Vice-chair of the Group to the Group's work programme be noted.

<u>Reasons</u>

- 1. To acknowledge the decisions made by the Board.
- 2. To inform the Group of the outcome of the meeting recommended by the Group and to assist in determining whether any further action was required.
- 3. To acknowledge how a matter that had been raised by the Group at its meeting on 13th November 2018 had been dealt with.
- 4. To acknowledge the decisions made by the Chair and Vice-chair of the Group.

NOTES:

- 1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the Council meeting on 25th March 2019 unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five members of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of these minutes.
- 2. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting of the Policy Scrutiny Group.

